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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of DMI Finance Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of DMI Finance Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company"), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group") and its associate comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at
March 31 2020, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the
consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on
the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act"”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of
affairs of the Group and its associate as at March 31, 2020, their consolidated profit including other
comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics'
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 38 of the consolidated Ind AS financial statement which describes the extent to
which CoVID-19 Pandemic impacts the Holding Company's operations and the financial results will depends
on future developments, which are highly uncertain. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
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consolidated Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The results of audit
procedures performed by us and by other auditors of components not audited by us, as reported by them in
their audit reports furnished to us by the management, including those procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial

statements.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(a) Impairment of financial instruments (including provision for expected credit losses)
(as described in note 6 of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements)

The Holding Company's impairment
provision for financial assets (designated at
amortized cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income) is based on the
expected credit loss approach laid down
under ‘Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments’.
ind AS 109 requires the Holding Company to
exercise significant judgement while
applying principles and other requirements
of the standard in addition to the
identification and adequacy of provision for
impairment of its financial instruments using
the expected credit loss (ECL) approach,
which involves an estimation of probability-
weighted loss on the financial instruments
over their life, considering reasonable and
supportable information about past events,
current conditions, and forecasts of future
economic conditions which could impact the
credit quality of its loans and advances. In
the process, a significant degree of
judgement has been applied by the
management in respect of following matters:

a. Defining thresholds for ‘significant
increase in credit risk’' and ‘default’.

b. Grouping of loans under homogenous
pools to determine probability of
default on a collective basis and
calculation of past default rates.

c. Determining effect of less frequent
past events on future probability of
default.

d. Estimation of management overlay for
macro-economic factors which could
impact the credit quality of the loans.

Additional considerations on account of
CoVID-19

Pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India
circular dated March 27, 2020 (“RBI
circular™) allowing lending institutions to
offer a moratorium to customers on
payment of instalments falling due between

Performed inquiries with the Holding Company's |
management and its risk management function to
assess the impact of lock-down on the business
activities of the Holding Company.

Assessed the Holding Company's policy with
respect to moratorium pursuant to the RBI
circular and tested the implementation of such
policy on a sample basis.

Evaluated the reasonableness of the management
estimates by understanding the process of ECL
estimation and related assumptions and tested
the controls around data extraction and
validation.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based on
their past-due status to check compliance with
requirement of Ind AS 109. Tested a sample of
performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether any
SICR or loss indicators were present requiring
them to be classified under stage 2 or 3.

Assessed the additional considerations applied by
the management for staging of loans as SICR/
default in view of Holding Company's policy on
moratorium.

Tested the ECL model, including assumptions and
underlying computation. Tested the input data
used for determining the PD and LGD rates and
agreed the data with the underlying books of
accounts and records.

Tested assumptions used by the management in
determining the overlay for macro-economic
factors (including CoVID-19 pandemic).

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation
of ECL provision performed by the Group in
spreadsheets.

Compared the disclosures included in the Ind AS
financial statements in respect of expected credit
losses with the requirements of Ind AS 107 and |
109. Reviewed specific disclosures made in the |
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

March 1, 2020 and May 31, 2020, the
Holding Company has extended a
moratorium to its borrower in accordance
with its Board approved policy as described
in Note 6.2.

In accordance with the guidance from
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAD, extension of the moratorium to
borrowers by itself is not considered to
result in a SICR for a borrower, however the
entity needs to evaluate whether the
borrowers to which moratorium is granted
will remain regular once the moratorium
period gets over. The Holding Company has
recorded a management overlay as part of
its ECL, to reflect among other things an
increased risk of deterioration in macro-
economic factors caused by Novel
Coronavirus (CoVID-19) pandemic. In
accordance with the guidance in Ind AS 109,
the management overlay estimate takes into
account reasonably and supportable
information without incurring significant
cost. The actual credit losses for the next 12
months could be significantly different than
the ECL estimates prepared by the Holding
Company depending upon the impact and
duration of the pandemic and various
regulatory and policy measures announced
by the Government.

Given the high degree of management's
judgement involved in estimation of ECL, it
is an area of material uncertainty and a key
audit matter.

Ind AS financial statements with regards to the |
impact of CoVID-19 on ECL estimation.

IT systems and controls

The financial accounting and reporting
systems of the Holding Company are
fundamentally reliant on IT systems and IT
controls to process significant transaction
volumes. Automated accounting procedures
and IT environment controls, which include
IT governance, general IT controls over
program development and changes, access
to programs and data and IT operations, are
required to be designed and to operate
effectively to ensure accurate financial
reporting.

Any gaps in the IT control environment could
result in a material misstatement of the
financial accounting and reporting records.

We performed the following procedures for testing IT
general controls and for assessing the reliability of
electronic data processing, assisted by specialized IT
auditors:

Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
IT access controls over the information systems
that are critical to financial reporting.

Tested IT general controls (logical access,
changes management and aspects of |IT
operational controls). This included testing that
requests for access to systems were
appropriately reviewed and authorized.

Tested the Holding Company’s periodic review of
access rights. We inspected requests of changes
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

to systems for appropriate approval and

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and authorization.

complexity of the IT environment, the « Inaddition to the above, we tested the design and
assessment of the general IT controls and operating effectiveness of certain automated and
the application controls specific to the IT dependent manual controls that were
accounting and preparation of the financial considered as key internal controls over financial ]
information is considered to be a key audit reporting.

matter.

Where deficiencies were identified, we tested
compensating controls or performed alternate
procedures. ‘

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’'s Report, but does not include the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read such other information, if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to thase charged with governance and to comply with the refevant
applicable requirements of the standard on auditing for auditor’s responsibility in relation to other information
in documents containing audited financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive
income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group including its
associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and of its associate and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its
associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cea
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associate.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group and its associate to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associate of which we are the independent auditors, to
express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, amon
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significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 2 subsidiaries, whose
Ind AS financial statements include total assets of Rs 344.11 million as at March 31, 2020, and total revenues
of Rs 69.29 million and net cash outflows of Rs 23.77 million for the year ended on that date. These Ind AS
financial statement and other financial information have been audited by other auditors, which financial
statements, other financial information and auditor's reports have been furnished to us by the management.
Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the report(s) of such
other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance
on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial
information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other
auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries and associate,
as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and reports of the other auditors;

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of
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the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies and
associate company, none of the directors of the Group’'s companies and its associate, incorporated in
India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2)
of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Group and its
associate company, incorporated in India, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 1" to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding Company,
its subsidiaries and its associate incorporated in India for the year ended March 31, 2020;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report
of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information of the
subsidiaries and associate, as noted in the 'Other matter’ paragraph:

i. The Group and its associate does not have any pending litigations which would impact its consolidated
financial position;

ii. The Group and its associate did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts
including derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2020;

iii. There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associate incorporated in India during
the year ended March 31, 2020.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI

per Chikag Jain

Part

Membership Number: 115385

Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
4

UDIN: 20115385AAAACQ2760
Mumbai
September 15, 2020
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of DMI Finance Private Limited as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of DMI Finance Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company”) and, its subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date. The provisions for reporting on internal
financial control under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") do
not apply to DMI Alternatives Private limited (Associate Company) and accordingly it is excluded for the
purpose of opinion on internal controls over financial reporting.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on,
“the internal financial control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)". These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Consolidated

Financial Statements
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A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference
to these consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India,
have, maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March
31,2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3Xi) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of the
Holding Company, insofar as it relates to these 2 subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in
India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiary incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

c -

per C in
Partn
Membership Number: 115385

UDIN : 20115385AAAACQ2760
Mumbai
September 15, 2020



DMI Finance Private Limited
Consolldated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020
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Particulars Notes As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
ASSETS
[Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 1,212.69 475.15
Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents 4 15.20 14.70
Trade Recelvabies 5 41,71 2543
Loans 6 33,353.51 21,701.48
Investments 7 15,362.24 9,648.35
Gther financial assets B 52317 677.57
{Non- financal assets
Current tax assets 16 170,07 118.50
Deferred tax assets (netj 16 378.74 123,37
Property, plant and equipment 9(a) 3B7.64 70.34
Other Intangible assets 9(b) 7.56 5.96
Other non- financlal assets 10 341.01 112.45
Phaseis held for sale 11 189.85 533.68
TOTAL 5@139 3%@0&.99
LIAMLITIES AND EGHHTY.
LIABILETIES
[Fimancial Habilities
Payables 12
{1} Trade Payables
(1) 10131 ovtstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises . .
{H) vet2? outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 1984 97.4
enterprises
Debt Securitles 13 22,797.% 5,7%2.2
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) 14 3,001.2 4,471.7,
Other financial liabliities 15 334.70 759.04
Kon financlal Nabilities
| Other Non-financial Habitilles 17 638.09 262,97
Equity
Equity share capital 18 5,592.94 5,487.41
Other equity 19 19,330‘2 1664609
Total Equity 24,523.32 : 22,133.49
||
1 TOTAL 51,983, 33,606,93
Summary of significant accounting policies k]

The sccompanying notes are an Integrai part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For 5.R. Batlibo! & Assoclates LLP
ICAl Firm Registration No, 101049W/E300004
Charterad Accountants

per Chir.
Partner
Membership No. 115385
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DN,
1€hied Financial Officer)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
DA Finance Private Limited
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DM Finance Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of profit and lass for the year ended Mareh 31, 2020
(AH Amount in Rs. In mllilons, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

teul Motes Fcrtl;u year March | For the w;;: March 31,
2020 e
{Revernie from operations
Interest income 20 6,092.41 3,803.70
Fees and commission Income 21 55.47 172.74
Net gain on fair value changes 2 225.65 i75.02
Total revenus from operations i 6,413.53 4,151.46
Other income 23 0.32 5.09
Tounl intome __ 6413.85 4,156.55
Expenses
Finance Costs 24 146893 1,183.65
Fees and commission expense 25 B843.03 215.09
P on financial instr 26 1,533.15 540.75
Employee Benelits Expense res 437.17 687.42
Depreciation, amorthation and impairment Ha) & 9(b) 76.48 26.62
Othe: expenses 28 63447 38426
Total Expenses 5,053.23 3,047.83
Profit/{loss) before tax 1,360.62 1,108.72
Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax 16 553.12 359.51
{2) Deferred Tax 15 (176.26) {23.99)
|_Peofit/lioss) for the yaar 983.76 77320 |
Add: Share In Prolit of associate 3854 39.56
Nat Profit after Taxes 2nd Share In Profit of Assaciste 1,022.30 812.76
Other Comprehansive income
a) Itams that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{1} Re-measurement gains/(losses) on gratuity (2.08} 055
Income tax effect 052 f0.16)}
b} items that will be reciassified to profit or inss
(1) Gain/{loss) on Fair Value Changes {95.37) (0.10)
Income tax effect 24.00 7.00
Diher Comprehensive Incsime , net of Income tax {?2.23) 7.29 |
il Comprehensive incoms dor the perdod 94837 820.05 |
Carnings per equity share® 2
Basic (Rs.) 1.84 1.72
Diluted (Rs.) 183 171
HMominal valwe per share (fs ) 10 ii1]
51 v ol significas W poificies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of aven date
For 5.R. Batlibol & Assotlates LLP For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004 D0 Finance Private Limited
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DMt Finance Private Limited
Consolidated Cash flow statement for the Year ended March 31, 2020
mmm;.mmwmmmmmmml

Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A Cosh New drom cperating sciivities:

Net profit bafore tax as per statement of profit and loss 137081 1,108.21
Adjustmants for
Depreciation and amortisation 76.49
Imterest Expense 1.468.85
Interust income (&mﬂﬂ
Met gain on falr value changes (225.77)
MMuhdhueMmmw-hm

stock option
mmmmmw (3.053.16)
ﬂ-mhwl*-w

(b In financlal and other assets 16.125.84

! [ finencial and other labifities 166.86
lwusefldwm}mmmm 1372

e} in non Fi | Habities 375.03
IﬂldWhmm 15,951.23
Direct taxes paid 1604,66)
Ml covh Mow Trom J Jsmaet I} noerating activities [A) ,469.05]
B Cash fiow from Investing activithes:
mluﬂm“md:
fhase of Property, plant and fncluding capital work-in-

mwnmm [396.44) (1241}
Sale of Property, plant and equipment (Including capital werk-in-
progress) 106
Purchase of Mutual Fund investmants (31,661,62) {14,850,00)
Furchase of Invesiments (894.73) |2,469.67)
Sale of Mutual Fund Investments 24, 119a1 10.123.01
Sale of Investments 2,479.93 1,473.88
Interest on investment Debenture 15.46 21,39

Mot cash few froom [{ined in] ineesting netivilies ()

C  Cash flow from fnancing activities:
Issue of equity shares (Including share premiumy
MMMWMWW

ket

th%:w-hm/lm In) Biesanreing, activities (<)
Met increasef{decreate) In cash and tash squivalents [A+8+0)

Cash and cash equivalents as 3! the beginning of the year

Lavh and cagh equivslents 8 the ond of the year 4

Components of cash and cash equivaients

Cash on hand 012 007
Balance with banks

in current accounts 121357 47508
Tutal cind #ndl trvh equivalents 4 1,212,689 475.15
5 y of tipmficanm W ki 3

Notes:-

Cash Mow statempnt has been pregparcd yider Ingiratt methnd 55560 st i the IND AS 7 "Cash Flow Statement”.
Previour year ligures have boen regrovsed] reclsihed shwrsose sl abyie
For distlosure of investing and fnancing atTiviies That 1o not remsre The use of cash and cash equivalents, refer note 35,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

Fote: MUM s
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Consolldated Statement of
{All Amount in Rs, In

DMI Finance Private Umited

Fio, ot Shares L
52,0057, 807 |

7,52, 15,865

2,00,56,804

mmla:mnmmmmmn,m
mm,mmmmmmww

=

£1,52,54,566 | gm&l!

b. Other Equity
Particulars 1 1 anad suy, Total —’
Fegulatery fleser Based  |Secwritins Retaiong
Reserve u/s 45 Ufs 36(1}vill)  |p, l." 1 demp Earnings
{1L) of RBI Act of the Income  [Respnans (Heseryg Reterve
Tax Act, 1961
4.51 818 202932 B1.71 2 Erd 5,713.95
: : #12.25 #1275 |
&1 &80
820.05 820,05
147.31 {a51} - {147.31) IJ.SI]
- 2186 . 2786
446.97 446.37
Md&kﬂ!wmmmwm 5569 55.69
version of CCDy 2,507.28 {1,387 27}} 1,220.06
sion af CLPYs 146.94 28782
R B.228.31 - B.278.31
Add: Share Prembumn on ¢ ofc .__.._|
Adl: Issue of Compulsorsy Convertbie Preferance
Less: On account of Compulsorily Convertibie
Preforence 1 into eauily and
Reatined ey of Ul -
n sl ,1%
Balance a3 on March 31 2019 73131 - _2B84] izsDRTR B171 289974 1654509 |
Erofd lor the Foor - . - - i .30
her i the {72.93) .83
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - 949,37 943,37
Tr. 14 1oV 20153 - - .53 -
| Share Saved s . S - - 38.54
Premium an conversion of CCPSs h 7136
Premium on lssue of equity shares 156475 136475
Discount on Issue of debenturs +
Deterted tay ity teversed on CEDL/CCPSs 54.37 54.37
Badancs 25 on March 312020 93235 8658 |  13,587.80 | 211 330195] sy

As per our report of even date
For 5.8, Batlibol & Associntes LLp

ICAI Firm Rngistration No. 101009W/£300004
Charterad Accountants
.
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Membershin No. 115385
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1. Corporate information
DMI Finance Private limited {the “Holding Company” or “Parent Company”} is a Company domiciled in India as a
private limited company. The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India {'RBI'} as a non-deposit accepting
non-banking financial company or NBFC-ND under the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Company is engaged in
the business of providing loans to corporates and other lending activities. The Holding company together with its
subsidiaries listed in Note 2{c )(ii) are hereinafter collectively referred to as the ‘the Group’,

Information on subsidiaries included in consolidated financial statements is given in Note 2{C){ii).

2. Basis of preparation

{a) Statement of compliance in preparation of financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended from time to time).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) instruments, other financial assets held for trading and financial assets and
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), all of which have been measured at fair value.

{b} Presentation of financial statements
The Group presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported
gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when Ind AS specifically permits the same or it has
an unconditionally legally enforceable rights to offset the recognized amounts without being contingent on future
events. Similarly, the Group offsets the income and expenses and reports the same on a net basis when permitted by

Ind AS specifically.

{¢) Principles of Consolidation

i} The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company and all its
subsidiaries (from the date control is gained}, being the entities that it controls. Control is evidenced where the
investor is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee. Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the
ability to direct relevant activities, which significantly affect the entity returns. The financial statements of subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to align the accounting policies in line with the accounting policies of the Parent
Company.

The Parent Company holds 100% shareholding in DMI Capital Private Limited and DMI Management Private Limited
and there are no contractual arrangements which rebut the control of the Parent Company over its subsidiaries.

The Group re-assess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expense
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from
the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the unifarm accounting policies for iike transactions and
events in similar circumstances and necessary adjustments required for deviations, to the extent possible unless
otherwise stated,

The standalone financial statements of the Holding Company and the subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-
line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group
balances and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealized profits or losses.

The financial statements of subsidiaries acquired during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit

and loss from the effective date of acquisition. Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealized income and
expenses arising from intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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{a)

DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

i} The consolidated financial statements include results of the following subsidiaries and associate of the Holding
Company, consolidated in accordance with Ind AS 110 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’.

Mame of the Company Country of Incorporation | Proportion of ownership as at | Consolidated as
reporting date

DMI Capital Private Limited India 100.00% Subsidiary

DMI Management Private Limited India 100.00% Subsidiary

DMI Alternatives Private Limited India 49.00% Associate

Significant accounting pollicies
Use of estimates, judgements, and assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities
and accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period, Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongaing hasis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the perfod in which estimates are revised and future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in the outcome requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future

periods.

(n particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is
included in the following notes:

i) Impairment loss on financial assets
Judgment is required by management in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when
determining an impairment allowance for loans and advances. In estimating these cash flows, the Group makes
judgments about the borrower's financial situation, These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of
factors such as credit quality, level of arrears etc. and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the
impairment allowance. Refer note 6.1 for further details of the increased uncertainty relating to the estimation of
impairment of loan pertfolio due to the impact of the pandemic as at March 31, 2020,

if} Business Model Assumption
Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business model tests.

The Group determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed
together 1o achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant
evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that
affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Group moniters financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior to their
maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of
the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Group’s continuous assessment of whether the
business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification

of those assets.

iii) Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the
gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the vafuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions

sre reviewed at each reporting date,
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

iv) Share Based Payments
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate
valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option,
volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

v} Fair value measurement

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction in the principle {or mast advantageous} market at the measurement date under current
market conditions (i.e. the exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technigue. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liahilities recorded in the balance
sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (“DCF”) model, The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing
fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financia! instruments.

(b} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent comprises cash in hand, demand deposits and time deposits with original maturity of less

than three months held with bank, debit balance in cash credit account,
{c) Recognition of income and expense

i} Interest income
The Group earns revenue primarily from giving loans. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured,

Interest revenue is recognized using the effective interest method (EIR}, The effective interest method calculates the
amortized cost of a financial instrument and allocates the interest income. The effective interest rate is the rate that
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The calculation takes into
account all contractual terms of the financial instrurnent {for example, prepayment optiors} and includes any fees or
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future

credit losses.

The Group calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than
credit-impaired assets. When a financiat asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3’, the
Group calculates the interest to the extent recoverable. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired,
the Group reverts to calculating interest income.

ii} Interest expense
Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the financial liability
and amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These include fees and commissions
payable to arrangers and other expenses, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue

of a financial liability.

iii} Other charges and other interest
Overdue charges including penal interest is recognized on realization basis.

iv) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when

shareholders approve the dividend.

{d) Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the

/ﬁ'\' ‘ght to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for consideration.
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Where the Group is lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liahilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in

Section m {ii} Jmpairment of non-financial assets.

Lease Liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term, The lease payments include fixed payments {including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments).

iii} Short Term Lease

{e)

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments
on short-term leases are recognised as and when due,

Property, plant and equipment (PPE} and Intangible assets

PPE

PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase
price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebate are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
assets is derecognized.

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure
is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Gains of losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation

Depreciation on PPE is calculated on a written down value {WDV} basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful
lives of the assets, prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 which also represents the estimate of
the useful life of the assets by the management. >
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

PPE costing upto Rs.5,000 individually are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

The Group has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its fixed assets.

Useful lives estimated by Rate of Depreciation
the management (years)

Furniture and fixtures 10 25.89%
Computers 3 63.16%
Vehicles 8 31.23%
Office equipment 5 45.07%

Leasechold improvements and allied office equipment’s are amortized on a straight-line basis over useful life
estimated by management.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of PPE are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Amortization

Intangible assets are amortized on a WDV basis a period of five years from date when the assets are available for use.
The amortization period and the amortization method for intangible assets are reviewed at the end of each financial
year.

Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
Provisions {excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the
best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.

Contingent liability is disclosed for {1} Possible obligations which wili be confirmed only by future events not wholly
within the control of the Group or (2) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
cannot be made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Post-employment benefits are classified as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Under a defined
contribution plan, the Group's only obligation is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits. The related actuaria! and investment risks fall
on the employee. The expenditure for defined contribution plans is recognized as expense during the period when
the employee provides service. Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Group's obligation to provide agreed benefits
to the employees. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the Group. The present value of the defined
benefit obligations is calculated using the projected unit credit method,

The Group operates following employee benefit plans:

i) Employee Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme, The Group has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the

provident fund scheme as expenditure when an employee renders the related service. el

i) Gratuity

;{ NP W In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Group provides for a lump sum payment to eligible

Ve } employees, at retirement or termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment

2%
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

with the Group. The Group’s obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is provided for
based on actuarial valuation,

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obfigation to the net defined henefit liability or asset. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these
liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements
are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

P
iif} Leaves
Entitlements to annual leave are recognized when they accrue to the erployees. Leave entitlements can be availed
while in service of employment subject to restriction on the maximum number of accumulations. The Group
determines the liability for such accumulated leave entitlements on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an
independent actuary at the Year end.

{i) Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authaorities in accordance with Income tax Act, 1961, Income Computation and Disclosure Standards and
other applicable tax laws. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted at the
reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum Alternative Tax {MAT} paid in accordance with the tax iaws, which during the specific period gives future
economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability is considered as an asset if there is
convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in the
balance sheet when it is highly probable that future economic benefits associated with it will flow ta the Group.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probabie that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws}) that have been enacted or substantively enacted

at the reporting date.

Deferred-tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in other

=, comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction

5'5-85»-’41{,\\ either in OCI or directly in equity.
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Earning per share

The Group reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with tnd AS 33 on Earnings per share. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity
share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the
reporting year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Share based payments

Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date,

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share based payments is expensed on a straight line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest,
with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Payments Reserve.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Loans and advances to
customers are recognised when funds are dishursed to the customers. The classification of financial instruments at
initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and the management’s intention when acquiring
them. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Classification and Subsequent meosurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

*  Debtinstruments/Loan portfolio at amortized cost

*  Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

+  Equity Instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
{FVTOCH)

Debt instruments/Loan portfolio at amortised costs

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

»  Theasset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

%%\ e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
LAY interest (SPPt} on the principal amount outstanding, [ =[]



DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Business model: The business model reflects how the Group manages the assets in order to generate cash flows.
That is, where the Group’s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets, the same is
measured at amortized cost or where the Group's objective is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash
flows arising from the sale of assets, the same s measured at fair value through other comprehensive fncome
(FVTOCI). If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets
are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured at FVTPL,

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows {i.e. measured at amortized cost),
the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
{the "SPPI test’). In making this assessment, the Group considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk,
other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the
contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the
related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss. The amortized cost, as
mentioned above, is computed using the effective interest rate method.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
interest income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are tecognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

The measurement of credit impairment is based on the three-stage expected credit loss model described in Note:
Impairment of financial assets (refer note 3 {m)).

Debt Instruments at FVOC!

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FYTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

The objective of the business mode! is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and fair value changes
relating to market movements selling the financial assets, and the asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPIL.

Debt instruments included within the FYTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OC)). However, the Group
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OC) is reclassified from the
equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FYTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.

Equity Investments and Mutual funds

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
are classified as held at FVTPL, For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present
in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an
instrument-by- instrument basis, The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

if the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,

excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of profit
and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortized cost. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair

= value and in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Group’s
ASS.;.&E"\‘\ financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts. .



DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Subseguent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using effective interest method.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabifities

The Group doesn’t reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never
reclassified.

De-recognition of financial asset and financial liability

Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets} is de-
recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Group also de-recognises
the financial asset if it has transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition.

The Group has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

- It has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
or

- Itretains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Group retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows of a financial asset (the 'originat asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or
more entities (the ‘eventual recipients'), when all of the following three conditions are met:

- The Group has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected equivalent amounts
from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount fent plus
accrued interest at market rates.

- The Group cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients.

- The Group has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without material delay.

In addition, the Group is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents
including interest earned, during the period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the
eventual recipients. A transfer only qualifies for de-recognition if either:

- The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
or

- The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

The Group considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practicaf ability to sell the asset in
its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional
restrictions on the transfer. When the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards and has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement, in which case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between: {a) the carrying amount {measured at
the date of derecognition) and {b} the consideration received (including any new asset chtained less any new liability
assumed) is recognised in the statement of profit or loss account.,



DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Financial Liabilities

Financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelied or expires. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-
recognition of the original liability and the re-cognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

{m) Impairment of flnancial assets
i) Overview of printiples for measuring expected credit loss (“ECL") on financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group is required to measure expected credit losses on its financial instruments
designated at amortized cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. Accordingly, the Group is reguired
to determine lifetime losses on financial instruments where credit risk has increased significantly since its origination.
For other instruments, the Group is required to recognize credit losses over next 12 month period. The Group has an
option to determine such losses on individual basis or collectively depending upon the nature of underlying portfolio.
The Group has a process to assess credit risk of all exposures at each year end as foilows:

Stage |

These represent exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or
that has low credit risk at the reporting date. The Group has assessed that all standard exposures (i.e. exposures with
no overdues) and expesure upto 30 day overdues fall under this category, In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group
measures ECL on such assets over next 12 months,

Stage Il

Financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are classified under
this stage. Based on empirical evidence, significant increase in credit risk is witnessed after the overdues on an
exposure exceed for a period more than 30 days. Accordingly, the Group classifies all exposures with overdues
exceeding 30 days at each reporting date under this Stage. The Group measures lifetime ECL on stage Il loans.

Stage Il

All exposures having overdue balances for a period exceeding 90 days are considered to be defaults and are classified
under this stage. Accordingly, the Group measures lifetime losses on such exposure. Interest revenue on such
contracts is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost (net of impairment allowance)
instead of the gross carrying amount. The methad is similar to Stage Il assets, with the probabifity of default set at

100%.

When estimating ECL on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Group applies the same principles for
assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Methodology for calculating ECL
The mechanics of the ECL calculation involve the use of following key elements:

Probability of default (PD) - The prabability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon
{12-month or lifetime, depending upon the stage of the asset). PD estimation is done based on historical internal data
available with the Group.

Exposure at default (FAD) - It represents an estimate of the exposure of the Group at a future date after considering
repayments by the counterparty before the default event occurs. The outstanding balance as at reporting date is
considered as EAS by the Group. Considering the PD determined above factors in amount at default, there is no separate
requirement to estimate EAD.

Loss given default {LGD) - It represents an estimate of the loss expected to be incurred when the event of default
~~curs. The Group uses historical loss data/external agency LGD for identified pools for the purpose of calculating LGD.
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Group reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the
economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Group analyses if there is any relationship between key
economic trends like GDP, Unemployment rates, Benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with
the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Group based on its internal data, While the internal estimates of PD, LGD
rates by the Group may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays are embedded in the
methodology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably,

Definition of default and cure

The Group considers a financial instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage IN {credit-impaired) for ECL
calcuiations typically when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on contractual payments. The Group may also
classify a loan in Stage Il if there is significant deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower or an
assessment that adverse market conditions may have a disproportionately detrimental effect on the loan
repayment. Thus, as a part of the qualitative assessment of whether an instrument is in default, the Group also
considers a variety of instances that may indicate delay in or non-repayment of the loan. When such events occur,
the Group carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the borrower as defaulted and therefore
assessed as Stage lll for ECL calculations or whether Stage Il is appropriate,

Classification of accounts into Stage Il is done when there is a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, typically when contractual repayments are more than 30 days past due.

It is the Group’s policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage Il or
Stage Il when none of the default criteria which resulted in their downgrade are present.

Collateral repossessed

The Group's policy is to sell repossessed assets. Non-financial assets repossessed are transferred to asset held for sale
at fair value less cost to seli or principal outstanding whichever is less at repossession date.

Write-offs

Financial-assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has stopped pursuing the
recovery. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated
as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries
are credited to profit and loss account.

ii} Non-financial asset

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based
on internalfexternal factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

{n} Falr value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using various valuation techniques.

Fair value is the price at the measurement date, at which an asset can be sold or paid to transfer a liability, in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Group’s accounting policies require, measurement of certain financial / non-financial assets and liabilities at fair
values {either on a recurring or non-recurring basis). Also, the fair values of financial instruments measured at
amortized cost are required to be disclosed in the said financial statements.
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Notes to Conselidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The Group is required to classify the fair valuation method of the financial / non-financial assets and liabilities, either
measured or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements, using a three level fair-value-hierarchy {which reflects
the significance of inputs used in the measurement).

Accordingly, the Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
uncbservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy described as follows:

*  Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group has access to at the measurement date. The Group
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity
of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price guotes available on the
balance sheet date,

* Llevel 2financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived
from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

¢ Llevel 3 financial instruments - include one or more unobservable input where there is little market activity for
the asset/liability at the measurement date that is significant to the measurement as a whole.

{0) Dividend
The Group recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorised and
the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. Fina! dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the
date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration hy
the Group’s Board of Directors.
{p) Foreign Currency Translation
Foreign currency transactions and balances
Initial recognition:
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.
Conversion;
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms
of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.
Exchange differences:
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of manetary items, or on reporting such monetary items of Group at
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial
statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.
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DM Finance Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Al Amount in Rs. in millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at March 31,  As at March 31,
2020 2015
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.12 0.07
Balance with Banks
- Cash Credit 225.30 -
- In Current Accounts 987.27 475.08
1,212.69 475.15
Bank balances other than above
Deposit with original maturity of more than 12 months - -
Depuosit with original maturity of more than 3 months less than 12 months* 15.20 14.70
15.20 14,70
Total 1,227.89 489.85
* Deposits being lien marked against carporate credit cards and bank guarantee.
For the purpose of statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent comprise the following:
Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.12 0.07
Balance with Banks
- Cash Credit 225.30 -
- In Current Accounts 987.27 475.08
1,212.69 475.15
Trade Receivables
Partlculars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
Unsecured considered goad 41,71 25.43
Total 41.71 25.43
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MNotes to the ¢

FTo

DMI Finance Private Limited

ts for the year ended March 31, 2020

[All Amountin Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwlse)

Investments
A Fair Value
Through other
Through Pr
Particulars Amuortised Cast " Lo:som and comprehensive Subtotal Others Total
income

As 5t March 31, 2020
Mutual Fund thwestments 12,147 61 12,147.61 12,197.61
Investments in Associate equity
- DMI Altarnat|ves Private Limited* 2943 89.48
Investment in Other Equity Sharas
- DMI Consumer Credit Private Limited - 316 316 ERT
hchaily Bharat Engineering Company Limited - Equity Shares 720 - 7.H 7.20
Flash Electronics Private Limited - Equity Shares - 250.00 250.00 250.00
Alehernist Asset Reconstruction Company - Equily Shares 22820 226.20 226.20
Alchemnist Asset Reconstruction Company - Con lsory C il
Preference Shares 3450 34.50 34,50
Alchemizt XV Trust {Investment) - 155 00 - 195.00 195.00
Al AIF Special Opportunltles Scheme - 1080 10.80 1080
Compuliory Convertible Debentures - 77317 773.17 773.17
Investmant in Debentures 7257 7257 7LET
Credil Substitutes 1333492 . 41553 1,753.50 1,753.50
Totsl (A) 1,440.99 12.349.81 1,682.91 15473.71 25948 15,563,139
Investments oulside India - - - - . -
Investinents in India 1,440 99 12,349.81 168251 15,473.71 8548 15,563.1%
Total (B} 1,440.99 12,349.61 168291 1547371 8948 15,563.19
Less! Allowance for Impalrment loss [C15* 106 .40 94 55 200.95 .95
Total Net O = (4) -{C] 1,334.58 12,349.81 1,588.36 1527276 99.48 15,362.24

© Investinent in Associale |2 as per Equity Accounting

** Refer Mote 6.1 for movement of ECL and gross ¢arrying amount of credit substitutes and CCDs

At fair Value
Through ather
Th h Pro
Particulars Arnortised Cost mngm: ftand comprshensive Subtotal Others Total
Incomne

As at Merch 31, 2019
Mutual Fund Investments 494271 4,941.71 494271
I in Fellow Subsidiary / Assadate equity
DI Housing Finance Private Limlted - Equity Shares 264 87 264.87 264.87
- DMI Alterpatives Private Limited* . 4339 49,33
Investment in Other Equity Shares
teially Bharat Engiteering Company Limited - Equity Shares 193 40 - 198.40 133,44
Flash Electronics Private Limited - Equity Share: 25000 250.00 250.00
Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Company - Equity Shares 31568 319.68 319.68
Alchernlst X Trust {Investment] 196 75 - 196.75 196.75
DMl AdF Special Opportunities Scheme - 1048 10.48 10.48
Compulsory Convertible Debentures - REFE: ) 77291 77293
Investment in Debenturas 113.23 . 119.23 119.23
Credit Subshitules 170561 - B95 BS 1604.66 . 2,604.66
Tatal |A) 1,828.04 533186 2,513.81 967971 49.39 9,729.10
Investments outside tndla - - - E -
Investments [0 indks 182804 I,237.86 251381 9,679.71 43,39 9,719.10
Total [@) 1,828.04 5,337.86 2513.81 9,679.71 49,39 9,729.10
Lass: Allowance for Impairment loss {C |+~ 8792 1282 20.74 8074
Total Nat D = (A} -[€) 1,770.12 5,337,86 2,490.99 9,598.97 49.39 9,648.36

* Investment in Associate is as per Equity Accounting

** Refer Note 6,1 for movement of ECL ahd gross carrying amount of credit substitutes and CCDs

Motes:

{1} During the year the Group has sold It entire equity stake In BMI Houslng Finance to various existing investors and its holing company

{il} Credit substitutes are quoted non-tonvertible debentures and are part of financlng activities. It has heen disdlased In investrents as per the distlosure requirement under the Companles

3

Other financial assets {at amortized cost|

As at March 31,

A5 at March 31,

HiXh 013
Securily Deposit 2104 1068
Others 502,13 66689
Towal 523.17 677,57




9{a] Property, plant and equlpment

DMI Finance Private Limted
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Furniture and

Office

Lease hold

: p Vehiel i Right-of-use Asset Total
fixtures equipment Improvements
At March 31, 2014 LAY 17.34 6.42 15.59 71.65 - 112.87
Purchase 0.08 .07 - 4.41 15.42 26.98
Dispasals - - - - - -
Adiustment {0.35) [4.51) - (4.29) {14 74} . 123.80)
At March 31, 2019 1.60 19.90 6.42 15.71 72.33 - 115.96
Re-Classification Adjustment (0.62) {0.33) - 0.65 - (0.30)
Purchase 0.50 872 0.00 1568 GE.91 29301 388.72
Disposals - - [1.06) - - - (1.06)
At March 31, 2020 1.48 29.29 5.36 32.04 141.24 293.91 503.32
Depreciation
At March 31, 2018 0.58 9.94 3.01 7.49 11,64 - 32.66
Charge for the year 0.25 2.03 107 5,22 971 - 25.28
Disposals - - . - -
Adjustment (0.24) (4.80) - (3.48) (3.80) [12.32)
At March 31, 2019 0.59 14.17 4.08 9.23 17.55 - 45.62
Re-Classification Adjustment (0.03) {1.23) - 0.06 - - (1.30)
Charge far the year 013 742 a7 6.46 1240 4524 7236
Disposals - - {1.00 - . - {1.00]
At March 31, 2020 0.69 20.26 .79 15.78 29.95 45.24 115.68
Net Block
At March 31, 2019 1,00 5.74 2.34 6.48 54.78 - 70.34
At March 31, 2020 0.79 9.02 1.58 16.29 111.29 248.67 387.64
9(b} Intangible assets
Software Total
Gross block
At March 31, 2018 4.66 4,66
Capitalised during the year - -
Purchase 543 5.43
Adjustiment (1.45]) (1.45)
At March 31, 2019 8.64 8.64
Re-Classification Adjustment 0.30 0.30
Capitalised during the year - -
Furchase 6.73 673
At March 31, 2020 15.67 15.67
Amortization
At March 31, 2018 2.06 2.06
Charge for the year 133 133
Adjustment (0.71) (0.71)
At March 31, 2019 2.68 2.68
Re-Classification Adjustment 1.30 1.30
Charge for the year 4.13 4.13
At March 31, 2020 2.11 8.11
Net block
At March 31, 2019 5.96 5.96
At March 31, 2020 1.56 156
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DMI Finance Private Limted
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

10 Other non- financial assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Capital Advance 9.14 0.00
Prepaid Expenses 46.10 29.63
Balances with statutory / government authorities 283.44 78.31
Deferred Rent Expenses 0.10 0.10
Other Non Financial Assets 2.23 4.41

Total 341.01 112.45

11 Assets held for sale
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Assets under settlement 189.85 533.68

These assets represent assets acquired from the Holding Company’s borrowers as a part of Group's risk management
strategy. In these cases, the Holding Company had entered into settfement agreement as a prudent measure by the
managemant wherein the borrower was approached and there was a mutual consensus between the Holding Company and
Borrower to transfer the asset in the name of the Holding Company towards settlement of the loan amount, The Holding
Company holds total assets under settlement to Rs, 189.85 millions as on 31st March 2020 { Previous year Rs, 533,68 millions
). During the year the Holding Company has liquidated the assets amounting to Rs 180 millions. Further, with resgpect to assets
amounting to Rs. 442.94 Millions, it entered into an arrangement under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code on July 13, 2018
whereby the Holding Company will recover a total amount of Rs. 263.98 Millions over a period of five years towards the claim
Rs. 163.85 Millions towards asset under settlement and Rs. 279.09 millions of remaining original loans due from the
borrower. The Holding Company has recorded the recoverable amount as a new loan at its net present value i.e. Rs 204.56
Millions which is classified under Stage 1 and recorded a loss for the balance amount.



DM Finance Private Limted
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data uniess stated otherwise)
12 Payabies

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Trade Payables
Total outsanding dues of Micro Enterprises - -
and Small Enterprises

Total outsanding dues of Creditors other than
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 198.43 97.45

Total 198.43 97.49

There are no amounts that need to be disclosed in accordance with the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development
Act, 2006 (the 'MSMED’} pertaining to micre or small enterprises. For the Year ended March 31, 2020, no supplier has
intimated the Group about its status as micro or small enterprises or its registration with the appropriate authority under
MSMED,

13 Debt Securities

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Non Convertible Debentures (Refer Note 13.1) 20,547.57 5,782.28
Optionalty Convertible Debentures 2,250.00 -
Total gross (A} 22,797.57 5,782.28
Securad* 4,744.57 5,782.28
Unsecured 18,053.00 -
Total 22,797.57 5,782.28
Debt securities in India 22,797.57 5,782.28
Debt securities outside India - -
Total {B) to tally with (A} 22,797.57 5,782.28

*Secured against Exclusive floating charge by way of hypothecation of loans and receivables of the Group.
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DMI Finance Private Limted
Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

14 Borrowings

As at March 31, 2020  As at March 31, 2019
At amortised cost at March 31,

Secured*
Term loans
From Banks 2,824.83 4,133.86
Cash Credit - 332.86
Lease Liability IND AS 115 266.45 -
Total gross {A) 3.091.28 4,471.72
Borrowings in thdia 3,091.28 4,471.72
Borrowings outside India - -
Total {B] to tally with {A) 3,091.28 4,471.72

*Secured against Exclusive floating charge by way of hypothecation of loans and receivables of the Holding Company.

Details of the Term Loans from Banks are as follows:

Bank Name Repayment Rate of Security Outstanding as on | Outstanding as on 31st
Details Interest Cover 31st March 2020 March 2019

State Bank of India-Il installments =>9%<12% 133% - 14251

Karur Viysya Bank installments =>0%<12% 133% - 64.16

HDFC Bank installments =>9%<12% 133% 131.04 205.72

HDFC Bank 12 monthiy _ 186.70
installments =»9%<12% 133%

SIDBI-I 14 quarterly _ ; 188.35
installments =>0%<12% 133%

Kotak Mahindra Bank 12 quarterly 49.96 99.84
installments =>0%<12% 133%

Unioh Bank of India 14 guarterly _ 24835 389.58
installments =>0%<12% 133%

Union Bank of India 14 quarterly n 354.04 494,74
installments =FO%<LIB | 33y

IFCI 14 quarterly - 711.21
installments =>3%<12% 133%

AU Small Finance Bank 36 monthly _ 162.22 311.67
installments =>9%<12% 110%

AU Small Finance Bank 36 monthly _ 191.21
installments =>9%<12% 110%

south Indian Bank 14 quarterly ~ 170.84 255.87
installments =>9%<12% 133%

Lakshmi Vilas Bank-11l 12 quarterly _ 166.02 297.85
instaliments | 9126 | gaae

Bank of Baroda-| 16 quarterly _ 737.12 977.35
installments =>3%<12% 133%

Hinduja Leyland Finance 36 monthly e 427.27
installments =>9%<12% 110%

Total 2,824 83 4,138.85

* Borrowings from bank are secured against hypothecation of loans given by the Holding Company.




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

15 Other financial liabilitles

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
Interest accrued but not due
Interest Payable on CCD - 1.79
Interest Payable on Debt Securities 215.41 76.53
Interest Payable on Bank Borrowings 6.34 6.45
Other financial liabities 112,95 174.26
334.70 259.03
16 Tax Expenses
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2020 are :
Year ended Year ended
Profit or loss section
or March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Current income tax;
Current income tax charge 553.12 359.51
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences {176.26) {23.99)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit
or loss 376.86 335.52
0Cl section
Particul Year ended Year ended
articulars March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
Unrealised {gain)/loss on FVYTOCI debt securities - -6.37
Unrealised (gain)/lass on FYTOCI equity securities (24.00} -0.63
Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit
plans (0.52) 0.16
Income tax charged to OCI (24.52) (6.84)
Reconciliation between effective tax rate and statutory tax rate
i Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
Profit before tax {including Other Comprehensive Income) 1,263.17 1,109.17
At corporate tax rate of 25.17% (Previous year 29.12%) 317.94 322.64
Expenditure disallowed 35.69 25.96
Income not subject to tax 245 {33.84)
Deductions {28.99) {3.086)
Short term capital gain 1.28 2.24
Impact due to revaluation of deferred tax due to change in
Income tax rate* 23.97 14.74
Tax expense {effective tax rate of 27.89%, Previous year 29.63%) 352.34 328,68

* The Group opted for reduced corporate tax rate of 25.17% as pet recently inserted section 115BAA of the Incame Tax Act,

1961 during the year ended 31 March 2020,
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DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Deferred Tax liabilities / (assets) March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Deferred tax liability

Interest Component on CCD and CCPS - {54.58)

Fair value of Financial Instruments {13.83} (41.27)

Difference in income recognition on unrealized gain on

mutual fund investments {19.25) {17.01)

Gross deferred tax liability {33.08) {112.86)

Deferred tax asset

Provision for gratuity and Leave availment 9,70 6.08

Difference between tax depreciation and

depreciation/amotrtization charged for the financial

reporting 5.99 4.22

Rent Equilization Reserves 3.96 -

ECL 366.51 194.86

Carry forward of Interest disallowed u.s 34B 25.67 29.70

Business Losses - 1.37

Gross deferred tax asset 411.83 236.23
378.75 123.37

Net Deferred Tax (Liability}/ Asset

Other Non-financial Liabitilies
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019

Employee Benefit Expenses Payable 87.79 49,32
Statutory Dues Payable 270.72 67.39
Provision for Expenses 69.20 30.80
Others* 210.38 115.46
Total 638.09 262.97

* Others include Processing Fee refundable to channel partners, advance received from borrowers and amount collected

from borrowers as Debt service reserve account (DSRA).
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DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

18 Equity share capital

Details of autharized, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

As at March 31, As at March

2020 31, 2019
Authorized share Capital
965,000,000 (F.¥. 965,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each 650,00 9,650.00
35,000,000 {P Y. 35,000,000} Compulsorily Corvertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each 350,00 350.00
10,000.00  10.000.00

Equity Share Capital
Issued & Subseribed;
Fully Called-up and Paid-up
558,979,166 (P.Y. 520,957,897) Equity shares of Rs, 10/- each 5.589.79 5,200.58
Sub Total (a) 5,599.79 5,209.58
Partly Called-up and Paid-up
57,315,400 (P.Y. Nil) Equity shares of Rs. 10/~ exch * 3.15 -
Sub Total (8} 3.15 -
Preference Share Capital
Issued & Subscribed;
Fully Called-up and Paid-up
Mil B Series {P.Y. 15,481,134) compulserily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 154,81
Nil £ Series {P.Y, 6,749,135) compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each &7.49
Nil D Serigs {P.Y. 247,468} compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs, 10 each 247
HIl E Series {P.Y. 224,971) comtpulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 225
Nil F Series [P.Y, 899,885) compulsarlly convertible preference shares of Ks. 10 each - 9,00
Nil G Series (P.Y. 4,180,602) compulscrily conwertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each - 41,81
Sub Total {B} - 277.83

5,592.84 5487.41

Total (A+H)

! During the year, 2,77,83,185 Compulserily Convertible Preference Shares (“CCPS”) of face value of Rs. 10/- each were converted into 2,00,56,804 Qrdinary Equity shares of

face value of Rs. 10/-each. The detail is as glven below:

18.1 Details for Convarsion of Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares{CCP5s) during the year
Particulars No. of Number of | Premium®  |Share
econvertible equity Capital
CCPSs shares

issued upon

convarsion
C Series compulsarily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 6.75 545 13.00 54.49
D Series compuisorily convertible preference shares of Rs, 10 each 0.25 Q.20 0.49 199
E Serles compulsarily convertible preference shares of Rs, 10 each 0.22 0.18 0.44 1.81
F Series compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 0.90 0.73 1,70 7.30
B Series compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 15.45 9,80 56.85 97 .96
G Series compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 2.08 1.85 239 1351
G Series compulsorily convertibile preference shares of Rs, 10 each 2.08 1.85 239 18,51
Total 21.78 20.06 77.26 200.57

*Total premium is Rs. 218.09 Millions out of which Rs, 140,83 milllons is already received in cash in previous years and Rs.77.26 Milllons pertains to canversion




DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes ta the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

18.2 The reconciliation of equity shares outstandi g at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year.

| AsatMarch31,2020 | AsatMorch 3L, 2019 |
| Ma. of shares Amount [ No, of shares Amount J

Mame of tha shareholder

Equity Share at the beginning of year 52,00,57,897 520058 32,44,12,138 3,244.13
Add: Equity Share Allotted durlng year

Shares issued during the year 7.52,79,865 182.79 9,62,48.878 956249
Shares issued pursuant to conversion of compulsorily convertible preferance shares 2,00,56,804 200.57

Shares issued pursuant to converslon of compulsorily convertible debendtures 10,02,90,581 1,002 91

Equity share at the end of year 61,62,94,566 5,592.94  52,09,57,897 5,200.58

18.3 Shares held by ultimate holding Company

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Name of the shareholder No. of shares % of holding Mo, of shares % of holding
DI Limited 43,89,39,922 7122%  41,85,24,894 30.34%
Total 43,89,39,922 F1.22%  41,85,24,894 B0.34%

As per records of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the
above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

18.4 Details of sharehalders holding more than 5% shares in the C

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Name of the sharchalder Ma, of shares % of holding Mo of shares % of holding

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

DI Lirmidted 43,39,39,922 F1.22% 41,85,24,894 80.34%
NIS Ganesha 5.4, 5,47,35,441 10.50%  6,25,34,447 12.00%
Kavz' 5,73,15,400 930%

Total 56,09,90,763 91.03%  48,10,59,341 92.34%

* During the year, Equity shares issued o partly-paid up basls where subscription amount being received on allotment is Rs, 32.11 Millions {Face Value Rs 10/-per share, Paid up
value- Rs, 0.57 per share inclusive of premium of Rs.0.51 per share] calculated proportionately, balance of Rs. 5,806.61 Millions {i.e. Face value and Share premlum) is vet to be
receved.

Lompulsarily convartible preference shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid up

Windy Investments Private Limited (B Serles) . - 1,54,21,134 55.72%
Windy Investments Private Limited [5G Serles) . 41,580,602 15.05%
Anuj Malhotra [C Series] - - 67,49,135 24.29%
Total - - 2,54,10,371 95.06%

Note: &5 per records of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest,
the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All Amount in Rs. In mitlions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

18 Other equity

Particufars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Share Premium Account? 14,547.80 12,905.79
Capital Redemption Reserve 81.21 81.21
Regulatory Reserve u/s 45-IC of RBI Act 032.84 73131
Share Options Outstanding Account? 66.58 28.04
Retained earnings 3,701.55 2,899.74
Total 19,330.38 16,646.09

1. It represents reserves created on account of share options granted by the Holding Company to its employees.

2. Securities Premium Account is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The balance can be utilized only
for limited purposes such as issuance of Bonus Shares in accordance with provisions of Companies Act 2013
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20 Interest income

DMI Finance Private Limited
Mntes to the C d d Financial for the year ended March 31, 2020
{&ll Amount in Rs. In miNions, axcept Tor share data unless stated otherwise)

Year ended March 31, 2020

Year ended March 31, 2019 |

On finangial assels  On financial assets

On financial assets

Particulars d
Oufuencial ety meagry measured ot fair  measured at Amortised measured at falr value
at Amaortised cost
walue thrgugh OC1 cost through OCI
Inlerest on Loans 592387 16208 3,408 .42 356.40
Interest income on loan ko associates” - . 1120
Interest on Margin hMoney Depasity 5A% . X768
5,930.36 162.05 3.447.30 356.40
— Tl =

L Interest Incame on loan to associates includes Interest on loan given 1o DM| Housing Finance Prlvate Umited and DMI Alternatives Private Limited ghven in Y 2018-20 NIL {FY 201819 Rs. 11,2 milllons)

2 Fess and commission Income

Year ended March 31,

Year ended Mareh 31,

Particulars
2020 019
Card Reload Fee 4528 SE3
Consulting Fae 2785 13421
Qther Income 2254 I ES
95.47 1Tr 74
22 Met gaknfiloss) on fair value changes
Particulars Year anded March 31,  Year ended March 31,
2020 2019
et gain/{loss) on financlal instruments at fair value through profit and loss
Investments 225 65 17502
Total Hat gain/f{loss] on fair value changes 225.65 L7501
Mnalysis of Talr valua changas
Fedlised 20502 10691
Unrealisad 16563 56811
225.65 175.02

Total Net gainflloss) on falf value changes

23 Qther income

Year ended March 31,

Particulars ¥ear endad March 31,
2020 2019
Mlae Incorme 03z 509
Totat 0.32 5.04
===
14 Flnance Costs
Partlculars Year onded March 31, Year ended March 31,
2020 2019
Interast
an compulsory ¢ ihle deb . 13339
onnon converlible dekentures 95203 53913
on bank term loan 396,28 425 86
on bank cash credit 10.42 2695
on CCPS dabyt Pl
on delayed deposit of statutory dyes 020 034
Fees on borrowings
- On Term Loans 2481 19,45
- On Delt Securities %01 746
Bank charges 3023 1229
Financial Cost on lease habillty 2086 .
Other Interast Expense .08 J.42
Total 1.468.2; 1, 193.29
25 Fees and commission expense
Particulars Yeoar ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2020 2019
Selling Partnar Commission 24303 21500
843,03 215.0%

26  Impairmant oi financlal instruments

Year ended March 31, 2020 Year ended Mareh 31, 2019
On financial ::‘::ln:':ﬁ::
Pacticulars Instruments measured On ilnanckal measurad at [air Om financial
at fair value through  instruments measured Total luie through Other instrumants measured Total
O1her Comprehens at A ised cost e 3t Amortised cost
Income Comprehansive
Income
Loans 165 Tre72 75137 11311} 29825 28514
Investments 7172 48.48 12020 .
Wirite offs 63158 631.58 .. 255 .61 255.61
Total 7337 1,459.78 1 2’23‘!5 {13.11) 55386 540,75
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Divil Finance Private Limited

Motes te the C K

d Financlal 5!

{for the year endad March 31, 2020

(AN Amount in Ra. In milllons, extept for share data unless stated otherwise)

Employee Beneflts Expenses

Particulars Year anded March 31, Vear ended March 31,
2020 20119
Salaries and wages 417 35 630.59
Conirlbullon to provident and other funds 1459 1548
Share Based Payments to employeas 40.50 3158
Stalf welfare expenses 14,33 277
Tatal 497.17 €87 42
Qther expenses
Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
2020 2019
Advertlsnmant Expenses 1330 440
Lagal and professianal faes 195 16 BETR
Travelling & « 2 exp W67 2855
Aut fae" 3% 354
IT Expenses B9 80 4718
Rates and taxes 246 4216
Rent 27 2817
5T Wrilten off 19887 .04
Commumnication Expenses 193 J a6
Printing & Slatianery 139 154
Independent Directors Fee 0.16 040
Lorporate Social Respons/bility t 2334 .07
Forelgn Exchange . 012}
Fepalr and Malnlenance a7 14.07
Insurance Expense 0 105
Security expense 4.15 502
Credit Evalustion Fee 3071 424
I Onboarding Exp 1259
Cther Expense Provision Written OFf 1399
hiscellaneous expenses 1.19 21.79
634.97 384.26

Total

1. Audited's remuneration

Particulars

Year ended March 31,

Year enged March 31,

2020 2019
Audit Tees 17 493
Tax sudil fees 029 031
Other services 088 0.30
3.96 3.54

2, Corperate Sodal Responsibllity (CSR|

In respact of Carporate Social Responsibility activities, gross amount required ta he spent by the Group during the year was Rs. 2334 miillons in F¥ 2019-20 {Previous Year Rs, 20 87 millions} and Group has

spent Rs. 23 34 milllons In FY 201920 [Previous Year Rs. 21.07 millions|

Earning per share

Particulars

Year ended March 31,

Year endad March 31,

20 19

Following reflects the profit and share data used in EPS computations:
Basic
Weighted average number of equity shares far compulation of Basic EPS { In Millions } 5EE 10 47166
Met proflt for caleulation of basic EPS 1,02230 EB12.76
Basic marning per share {inRs) 1.84 172
Ofiuted
‘Welghted average number of equity shares lor computation of Diluted EPS | In Millions } 558 9] 474 51
Met profit for cakulation of Diluted EPS 1,022.30 B12 76
Diluted aarning par shave { in Rs | 1.83 1.71

1000 10.00

Nominal valua of squity shares [inRs )
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M Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Consolldated Fi

ial Stat its for the year ended March 31, 2020

{All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

32 Disclosures in respect of Related Parties as per Indlan Accounting Standard {IndAS) — 24 ‘Related Party Dlsclosures

[a) Detail of related parties

Nature of relationship

Name of Related party

Holding company

DI Lirvited

Associate Company

DI Alternatives Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiary

Ok Consumer Credit Private Limited
DMI Housing Finance Private Limited

Key Management Personne|

Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh
Mr, Shivashish Chatterjee
trs. Bina Singh

Mrs. Jayati Chatterjee

Mr. Gurcharan Das

r. Nipender Kochhar

Mr. latinder Bhasin

Mr, Sahib Pahwa

Relative of key management personnel

Mrs. Mallika Singh
Msz. Promita Chatterjee

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by
Managerment personnel ar their relatives

Dl Capital Fund LP
Compro Technologies Private Limited
K2VZ, Partnership Firm

with related parties:

{b) Significant tr cti

Salefpurchase of services/assets

Purchase of services Sate of services / Amount owed by  Amount owed to

f assets assets related parties

related parties

o

logies Private Limit

Compro Tech
2020
2019

DI Housing Finance Private Limited
2020

2019

DMI Alternative Private Limited
2020
2019

Bina Singh
2010
2019

DMI Limited
2020
2019

ESDP's to Employeas of DMI Alternatives Private
Limited

2020

2019

ESOP's to Employees of DMI Housing Finance Private
Limited

2020

2019

598

- 64,44

253.79

24,29
217

24.29 -

1.55

7.40
3.42

392
3.48

415
2.60



DI Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Disclosures in respect of Related Parties as per Indian Accounting Standard {IndAS) — 24 'Related Party Disclosures' {contd}

Loans

Interest accraad-  Interest paid  Amount owed by
nd fe,
Loans taken and repayment thereof take{::::i:: ! {Inctusive of TDS) {exclusive of TDS}  related partles
DMI Capital Fund LP
2020 : . -
2019 {414.34) 40,36 85.54
Ms. Mallfka Singh
2020 . - -
2019 {2.00} 0.20 0.18
Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Slngh
2020 - . -
2019 {12.56) 124 1.11
DI Alternatives Private Limited
2020 =
2019 60.00 2,19
Ms. Bina $ingh
2020 ~ s
2019 (2.25) 0.22 0.20
o Advance [{taken)/ Interest on loan, Amount owed to
! & given and repay thereof alven if any Repayment related partles
DMI Housing Finance Private Limlted
2020 . .
2019 430.00 5,01 {430.00) =
of expense paid ‘of expense Amount owed to
Relmbursement of expense by refated party incurred on related part
onbehalfof  behalf of related party
entity party
DMI Houslng Fi Private Limited
2020 Q.93
2019 .
DMl Alternative Private Limited
0.88

2020
2019




DMI Finance Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Remuneration to key managerial personnzl March 31, 2020  March 21, 2019
Mr. Yuvraja Chanakya Singh, Jt. Managing Director
Remuneration 57.54 57.28
Post employment benefits 0.36 0.36
Mr. Shivashish Chatterjee, Jt. Managing Director
Remuneration 56,08 233.97
Post employment benefits 0.36 0.36
Mrs. Iayati Chatterjee, Director
Sitting fees 0.16 0.20
Mrs. Bina Singh, Director
Sltting fees 0.06 0.10
Mr. Gurcharan Das
Sitting fees 0.08 0.0%
Mr, Nipender Kochhar 0.16 0.20
Sitting fees
Mr. Jatinder Bhasin
Yearly Retriuneration 10.00 10.00
Mr. Sahib Pahwa

3.40 3.43

Yearly Remuneration

Shares issued/ purchased from ralated party

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

b Limited
Issue of equity shares

DMI Capital Fund LP
lssue of equity shares

Ms. Blna Singh
Issue of equity shares

Ms. Mallika Singh
Issue of equity shares

K2VZ, Partnership Firm
Issue of equity shares

Others

1,714.63

32.11

9,190.81

414.34

2,25

2.00

During the Year ended March 31, 2020, DMI Finance Frivate Limited has down sold certain non convertible debentures to Mr. Sahib

Fahwa for consideration as menticned below:
Sale of MCDs- NIl {Mar'19; Rs, 1.02 Millions)

During the Year ended March 31, 2020, DMI Finance Private Limited has down sold and purchased certain non convertible debentures
from Mrs. Jayati Chatterjee for consideration as mentioned below:

Sale of NCDs- Rs 1.24 Millions {Mar"19: til)

Purchase of NCDs- Rs 1.20 Millions {Mar'19: Nil)

During the Year ended March 31, 2020, OMI Finance Private Limited has down sold and purchased certain non convertible debentures
from Ms. Promita Chatterjee for consideration as mentioned below:

Sale of NCDs- Rs. 0.53 Milltons {Mar'19:iil)

Purchase of NCDs- Rs. 0.51 Millions {Mar'19: Nil}




{ 6TOT'TE Ya4ei 12 S& SUOI|(IA 059 *SY } OT0T “TE YIIRIA 1€ SE SUDIIN 65 1L 1S SH 4O panwn
2eAld 3IuBULY BUISNOH W ARIPLSGRS MO[J3) 1 O] 531 198} Wwalap swede syueq o) s3djuelend a1ei0diod uasd sey Auediuod Suipjoy ayy

Aipqey yusBunuo) pE

‘0707 ‘ET Y2ICIA U0 eIpL|
40 jued aaasay AQ panssl JeINdND Ay YUM pea) 9TOZ ‘SUOHII {Mueg sa1as3y) Auedwo) Suiye) 1sodag pue Auedwon Surjel usodag-uoy
enodu Ajleanewsis - Auedwo) |eueuly Supyueg UoN - UOIPING IBISE ayy 1ad se psmndwos sl 0Z0T ‘TE YaIew pPapus 12aA Yy IO} YD

%58°59 %00t HY4d [F101
%BL0 %680 Yyyo z eIl
%4059 UIEEr dvH T 4311
6TOZ'TE Yooy Je sy 0Z0Z ‘TE YoaeAl 1e sy sienaey

|e3ide) Auoyejnday (1)

‘ynoud sy1 Joy Buipuny alenbape ainsua 0] aueape uj e
pauued s; eyded ut seazoul ‘Afuipioy ‘wiou Aotendal Pa1epuew ay) ueyy 1aysiy Yy sit ulejuiew o) s10aeapus Auedwod ulpjoH Byl

2181
35313101 pue Apinbl) NP3 IPA(IUL YIIYM -SYSLI 4O 1UIWSSISSE O} paudie Jue sue|d yimoad asay) -ABajens afues Buo| e os|e pue pieog 3y Aq
pasctdde s ya)ym ueid Sunesado lenuue ue yo ped swuof yiym ywoiS pauueid s)) o3 paudije st 3uawelinbal (edes §o Juswssasse 5,dnoJg ayy

Buwuely

'sIun |2 je (eydes Aloye|ngal palepuew ay) ueys aseq jended Jaydiy e uleluiew 0 sJjoaeapua dnoug ay| "ABaiel)s
Ym0.3 21 PUB SS3UISNY S| 03 W33y $351 3y} Hoddns o] aseq eudes Suons e UlBIUIEW OF SWie dNOJS YL “IUSWUOLAUS [2DIDWIWIOD pUe
21Wou0ds ‘Alale|ndal 3y unoade oju; Bupyey ASs)ens ssauisng s poddns o3 [endes 40 spas) a1eudosdde weEwWw 0 5 9ARI8Ig0 5 dnosg ay)

aAn3iqo
nuawsieuew jeudey {1

‘(193] ©1pu| Jo yueg anlasay ‘sojeinal auy
0 sjuawanbas Asenbape ()ded ayl 5135w PUE S53UISNA $)1 63 JUBISYUL YS1J 19A0D O} aseq |e)des sy saBeuewl Afaanoe Auedwon SuipjoH syl

|endes ££

{osimiay)o paiels ssajun elep aleys Joj 1daIxa ‘suoljiw uj sy Ul Junowy [y}
0207 YaJe] T€ p3pua 1834 8y} J0) SJUINLIDIEIS [BIDULUIS PHIEPIOSLO) 0} SAI0N
pauwr] a3eald 2xueuly {Nag



‘sjaquinu aaljeledwod sy s1e1sad 01 pauinbas 10U s1 dnotg Y3 ‘pIepuUels 3L ul UoIsiAcid [euosURN AY133ds BY3 JIPUN PIIWLA Se pue wes

ay3 uo paseq "yoeosdde aal2adsoial payipow 3yl Suisn gTO7 ‘T Judy uo se Sulisike s1vesueD B5ea) ||e 03 )1 paydde pue 10z ‘T (1dy W) 53583 — 91T S¥ pu| p1dope sey droig ay)

'$3583) 2521 104 SUORDLIDXI UONIUB023) ,B3ES) WI-1I0Ys, 2Y) s31|dde Auedwiod BUIP|OH Y "$53] JO SYIUOW 2T JO SWay ased) Ylm 9583) uIeIF) Sey osje Auedwod SUIpjoy ayl

$JERA 0T 01 T U9S/M194 3UE SULIB] 3583] 3YL "95E] U0 UDNE) 53Deds (ENUSPISAI PUB 321440 JO) SJIRIIUDD 35e3] Sey Auedwon SUIpjoH 3yl

sasea] 9§
£T'TZ6'6 {ESEPO'T) iVEISE T 66 T8¢ SEUIMOII0]
3 = 5 - - S1955Y 2511 JO Jydly
) (Bro15°¢) 8T0Is’e {s020)s2.:muaqagq 2|quiaauas Aosndwos
998 £9 0T £94LT R {wmwiaid sanunias uipnpaul)seieys
FUBIBJald 3|qiuLau0) Alosindwo)
ISPL6LT YSBELTT 6v°796 BY'ELT'S (wnwa.g
ssuunaas Juipnpuy euded aseys Ajnbg
Suiso[3 BY10 {wniuwag SMO IY5ED duado JUBLLNIISY] §O SWeN

Buipnjaul) uoisianusy
610Z 'TE UDJe PapUS Jea), 3y Jog
"SBJELS AIUTIBY 214 I|qRI2AU0D A10s|RdI) JO UO|SIBAUOI JO S(IBIDP 4O} T'ST JION Jayey .
Or'Z79'sT 9 66T TO'TOP'ST ET'TE6'6 saumoliog
L9BFE [zl 174 " - - S13S5Y7 95 40 3481y
T (39°31¢) - 99'21Y Llwnwaad saunsas Suipnpugsaieys
a3ualajaly 3|qIuaaua) Aosindwon
TL0VT0T '£86" . “be6 funiuo)d
PriEBST 6L TET ISwL6 L1 sailInIas Juipnpul) |epdes saeys Aynb3y
Fusory 120 (whwaty sMo(4 y5eD sujuadp WALNNSY) JO FwepN
Jupnpsul) uoisiaauoy

0202 ‘T£ YIIey papua Je3j 3y 104

s1u3[eainbs ysea pue yses o asn ay) axnbai 1ou op jey) suondesuen Supueuls pue Jupsenu) Jo MsoPSIA &¢

{as1miayio paress ssajun elep aueys Joj 3dIIXS “SUOHILW L] Sy Ul JUNOWY )
0207 Y342 TE Papus 1834 2Y} J0j SIUSISIEIS [EIUBLLY PBYEPI|OSUOD 01 SOI0N
paywy 33eALd S3UEUL |INQ



0Z0T ') £ Y2IBIN papua 1824 Sulnp SUOIIA O8£S 53 SBM S3SE3| J0) SMO[}IN0 ysen [Bro] s dnoiny |

35 TL SSO] 10 J1j04d Ul PASIUGO3E JUNOWE [¥0 |
(S2SU2ND 13YL0 WO PIPN|OUT) SISED| LWWIA-HI0YS O) BUTIR|a] dSUAAN]

Peit sanIgen ased| jo 13adsan un dsuddng 15|
tT Sk 19SS 2SN-[0-1BH J0 192dsa1 ul asuadNa uonedardac]
0707 1€ guey SARnInIEg

S50] PUE 11J0d UT PIZIUT002] SJUNOWT a1) 28 sUImof[] 2y,

§T-LTOT 01 BUIBURI YULINJEWT UM 0507 T PUR 946§ T] UIDAIQ S| SSI[EQEN) SSES( 10] I1RJ 1S2U31U1 2A10D[9 2 |

CF'99T
4g34 21 Jo PO 3Yy) J8 JdUE[EY
(08 +¢s) 1U3A 1) TULIND JPTW SIUSUAE]
Fe LT
TE3A ) J0J UOIRIDOT 1S2IAIU|
[6 6T R3S U SuLnp opew SUOHpPY
- 104 2] JO SUILUIEDSG S} 18 oouR|Rg
0707 ‘1€ yarey
sig(nanaeg
1SMO[|0f S 21 POLIad ) FULINp SJUIIAOW 3] PUB SI|LARI[ F5E2] JO SIUNOWE Surdues 2y g,
L9RFC ITOA ] 10 pUd 21 8 aoun|Rg
+Tst) JB2A 241 10) aaRD uoneoadag
16 €6C 1B3A 2] FULIND apell suoIppy
- B3 941 JO sUTUUTEAq 9] & 900T[eg
0T0Z “1€ Qe
SAE|R) AL

SAM0|10] 5B 3¢ POLIad A1) TULIND SIUSWDAOW 1) PUE PHZ{UF0DIL SJ3SSE 25T1-j0-1[al] JO SJUNOWE SUIALIED 3]

{asimiagro paleys ssajun eep 24BYS 104 3d99%d ‘SUOIJ]IW U "SY Ul JUnowWy |y}
0207 YR TE papus Jeah aU3 Jo) SJUSWSIEIS |BISLSUY PIIEPIOSUOD OF 530N
PaHwWI 212Ald S3ueuld {INQ



OL'VEE £9'£0T E = 2 £L€ 90°0F 6Z'65T GO EL

el |BIOURUY B0

06'TLTE > - 17097 £5'06L L1 0207 TETIT £2'59 (s201n335 1qaq ueyl J2yio] sfuimoliog
SET5L°8T = Sv'006'ST RITELD LETITE TCCEF'T TS+EST LLTVE FL 6o S31UN3as 1q3g
86l - £ - = 9TELT £9EL = £5°E SgeAey Bpes)
= : ¥ - - = 1 g = SHUIGEY |EPUEL]
BIEZS LOPET 80'e Iv't (441} S8'8E BT°5T = 8ol SIASSE |EURUN NG
T LZ9'9T IESTT'T £BFLE SEIFET IT'SSE 0562171 QEPL D662 EE'SET SUawrssay)
61628 Tt B IEFT SEPEFE LFEILPT SHTEE'S L8999 217662 i 8IT'e P2 EES'T sueo
TLTH ] = = - 2 = ¥ TLTF sajqenz3ay
0Z'sT = - = 6571 2 - - iT43 SJU[RAINDA YSBY pUE YSE) URY) J3110 SJUr|eq yUEg
69°Z12'T 5 - - - 3 . - 6921 T Siu3tennba ysed pue yse)

siasse [epuelly

[5T-T slesh § a0y sledh g JEIAT O} SYUOLI § 0) Syjuow [T Yiuow T oqdn
seA 510 | sieah € seag |01 JesAT sang SYIUOW 9.I9A0 |SYIUOW £ JOAD | £ OF SYIUOW 7 f3AQ | 7 O} WUOWT JaAg

OT-1BN-TE

SPINIO2IY 7R SISSe [eueul) €,dN0IY Y] JO $MO|) YSEI PRIUNGISIPUN Y] 30 2]130ud Aun]ew Y] S3SUEBLIWINS MO|3q Bi0RY Ay

SuOIsIap ssauisng 3@a1e.0s wael-Suo) pue suopsafod Yimoid ueo) uLE)-ieal uBwuoAE 1BRIEUW PUE HWOUOIE JUSLIND ) SI9PISUOT OS(e 7TV ‘s waieuew
Aupinby jo ssadoad 23 03 paeda) yupn AjPiepdosdds pue Ajpuapnid paSeuei s Awpinbi 5,dnotg ainsus oy Paz)jan saanos Buipuny ajqe|iene jo xiw s1epdosdde a1 Buliwalap 10y 3|qIsUDLSas 5 OITY 5,8N049 3y |00] piepuEls
e se paidope usaq sey Yoiym salep Ajuniel paidajas 38 SPUny JO 3RUER JO SN|AINS AMIE(NLLND 10 UONENI(e] pue Jappe) Alumiew e Suisn siualasinbas Fupung 1au uiBeuew pue Bulnsesw Ag ysu Aupinby safzuew droig ay 1

5550|410 1500 3|qe3daddeun Bupnaw Jnoyim anp ||ey Ay se s395se ) sasesIul puRy 01 10 sUORESNGO 531 133w 03 AUPGEUY 51 J5UYF WOl BuISLIE LORMIASUI U 0] S50] JO) [enuajed syl 5 Y50 Aupinbry

A5 Aypanbin {y )

“NjeA a3 URO| SA1BAIZSUOD SUaEIY (IR |BB3) PUB (EIULDSY ‘BILIIRISIL PUE SSBUISNY 5,1PWOISND B 40 UOHedHLDA [eU0sIad “SNEIING LUOITEULIOJUI JIPAID LIt
AIDISIY UP3ID JO UONEINYIIIA PRI YDIGM ‘USRI Ysil 10§ s3INSE3W JqeUns pajuawa|dwi aney pue ssonoesd Suipus( Jusprud o) 2uepaduy anp s3a18 dnosg Y1 senwwie) Juswafeuely Y PUE S9IMWLWGT JUBLISTRUEY
AlIqQe( 1355y Byl ‘SIUNLWOD Npny By 2uipn|oup SENLWOIGNS S pUB pleoq AQ UBALD §1 MIomaliely Juwadeuew A5 5, dnousy Ay Usysl Yans ssauppe 93 saunpasoud pue s2a10d Mmooy 0} pue o} 132igns s| dnoug ey
SASH SNOLIEA SU1 16U PUE 3.mseaw 01 51 $355330)d JuswaTeur ysu ¢, dnosg ul 2AnDalq0 redinupg s4) 1usuoIaLR Sunesado pue ssauisng SUpud| o PR1R(3] 2J€ JeU) 551 SNOLIEA 0) pasodud 51 dnoug “wonminsu Suipus| e sy
sapijed pue aumngs JuswsFeusul ysiy

Judwsfeuepy ysiy 5

{simaayro pares sso(un egep sieys 10y 109X ‘Suoypw up sy U wnowy ||y)
0Z0Z Y212 TE PIPUa JBDA Y3 JOJ SJUWBLEIS (BIIUBUIY P1RPIOSUDY 0 $310N
PSMWIN 31BALg 32ueULS NG



swucpad Juawsedap uswsdeue)y 35y ay)

S5ausng fesaao s,dnoig ayy ue paseq aue sa0d ay) JuswaSeueln $1 pue sl Npaud 01 Buyeid soinod Suipus| pue A3:eNs Hsir ypasd s dnoun s

wawadeueyy 51y Npasd §,dnoug a1y ‘Avedwos Pyl 9 £50] dnoUadR Ut Bulnsas pasedusr st uenesigo yans wopiad 01 AJIqe 53| Jo uoneqe ue vo wopiad oy Juymun J

64'668"9F 5502 TT'9TL'?2 BOETLE 09'8z DR'L8T'6 = rO'6ET'T 18301
1R 4 55°F2 £9'86F - = E - - BEEEETEYIVED Ta)
DS'ESL'T - . BT - TF2ITT - - SluaWisany)
TLTF = S9°EE - = R - [ sa|qenalay
LTTOSTE - LTTOS'1T . - . - (SURD| 10 JUNOWE |BN2UO3JS0E0T Jalnsuoy
PTISETT = 95789 00ZLT'E 0487 BO'GI6 /. - . {sUBO| 10 JUNOWE |EN1JENIUDD|a1EI00I0 -SUEO] WIS L
Qa1 = * - * - - 0Z'sT SJuBeAInbY YSEa pUE YSED UEY] J3130 J0UE B JueR
BITIT'T . 4 . = & * 697121 s]usjesinba yses pue ysen
1955€ |Bloueury
07-1eW-TE
(1oL SIBYI0 pessy Bupngsenuey — 218153 Jeay JUIULIBAGD SEIAIBS [EISUBLY
) 2 SE0IMES :

dnoug) ay o $1955E |B|IURLY 2Y) JO) Ansnpu| A UD|IRAUPIUGD Y5 BYY SMAYS 2102 Suiwo)|a) By

UOIRENUSIUOD YSU JO SISAjewry

"BINS00XA JIP3.0 WNLINEW 3U) S1U3S302) S3955E [BIDUBLL JO Junowe SutAled ay|
"US{1EIUBWINI0P JO FUlI01U0L MmalAs pue saunsodxa / suondaoxa ypass Jo Bulionuow Buias )| 1paJa 'uone|nwaog Adjjod 1pal] o uoizaung sy

‘ugiIun uoeudiio ueoy o Juapuadapy) Juswledap uawaBeuepy ysiy aieledas e 5| a)ay) $sanoud j0ijuos Pue Juawddeuesw ¥51 11pasd leDunuE 0] pue 3u)|didstp UPaID UBIUIBW O]

uswaieusw Joiuas 2yl Ag ;sLenb AIaA3 pamainad s alues au) pue ASajens

ancidde o) uawaleuew Jouas s dnosg 2yt Jo Appaisuodss) [essho 33 51 )
“$ysid Bumonuod pue Buloluow uswsInseaw ‘aaueldaie ‘UoneINUIPE 104 SBINPEd0I PUB SWAEAS -

SUMINILS [RUOIEZIUETI() -
WHsisn0 5 JuswaBeuew Jojuss -

:SpusUodwo? ulew Buimo)o) 03u) pszogales s yiomales)
243 5| JOF|(q0 ue 1Y) [EHUIOY Y1 W) SISUE NSy 1PaID

st wpas] (9)
10652 v 200 ITE LE9F £5'3f 36'TH LELT ET'PE SANIge) |epaueul S0
BE'6LT'S = 95°0rE TFEIS’T 5896 09'Tis THSEE 9ELET BLTLE {53R1N335 393 YEY3 JAL30) sBumoiiog
IP'e0p'e : 3 ALFTL'E ¥ LLB'E 97198 YI'SPE - - SIINIEG 192g
6b'L6 - - : - > E > 6146 sajgehed apes|
L5°4L9 5501 or'o P9'6E 9515 rLIr 0£'81 7502 [4:95 51355 |BIUEUY 18410
OE'L0T'TT L8°T66'T BTEEQT PSTER'T EQ 8y S5 L5°8LT vErt T&'797 SluFwgsaau
9t'99¢'92 7561 ET069'E LLLIS'6 FPE6RT'S B9'9E9'E SHESH'T 98'66%'T IU6SE'T suRd]
Eb'SZ - - - = 2 s (4] LT sajgenaday
04'tT E - . £9'TL . - . L0€ siu|eanba yses pue yse)) uey} IS 1o S0UERq Jueg
ST'SLY - s = S = - = atsit sjuzjeanka ysea pue ysed

- ~_Gyesse [epuenj] |

reroL siead g 0y sieak g BIAT O3 SYIuOW 9 0} SYOW Yuour YIuow T opdn
SIe3A S IND | siead I2A0 | 0] JesAT J9A0 | SYIUOW g 13AQ SUIUOW £J3A0 | £ 0 SYJUOLE 7 19AD | T OF YywowT Jang

6T-48N-TE

{asymiatio pajess ssajun ejep ateys 10} 3033%3 ‘SUol||jIw Uy *sy Ul Tunowny ||v)
DZ0Z YHEIN TE PRRUS 1824 BY) JO} SIUDUIFIEIS [EISUEULY PAABPIOSUC] 0 $310N

PaILN 1RALY dUBULY JING




Ut JUSaAOW Isanpe way Buninsal $so) 10g jenuated S| fSu I9YIEW S105RSY) W
SE U3ns Jondwi aq Aels 3 Aj9si3AU0T PIpES APAIE Bl 1941 s1USuirugsUl pue s3unba f sanunias Jo sonayeod ur

‘sa0Ud Alnba ‘sayel aBueyaxs udiaio) ‘s3jel 1saunlul s yans sealid 10 $3e) 13ew UL SUBLISAGL Aq palaage Alasiaape B j|lm LORnpsul [2ouey

1925 a3ue|eq-yo se PATUOZA]EI SIAAIIE WO I5LIE O5|R AR 45| JayIELW ‘Sapisag

sieg s 7L by STT60'E N3 193( VR 12430 SBUIMOII0E
FeY 15a4RY) | §TERLS £9°46LCE $a114N335 1939
Saqey [epueuly
saLLmavn
Q1EY 1554810 | 99'b(9'7 0S'E5L°T FUMNSQNS PpaU3
33ug Aunb3| 6T'OT9 TTOTLET {59In135GNS UPaID UYL JBYIOISIUBLISIAL|
IDE5E [BIIUeUL |
51355¥
AMayIsuas

A1 Areunag TE ;h““_ﬂm sy 1€ :hw__.u.__aﬁ sy Seloned

BunEadag Jsiy 1594E [E10L

“Ysi #311d AJinba pure $s 91eJ 152J2101 40 WNo20e uo Aglewnd s134sU 1aew 0y 2nsodxa s dnous sy
“s201d Aljpoluio pue Aynba ‘salel a0y *salel 153480 SE Y35 SI0338) YS11 JEew

*ss0dap pue SURD| JO YDIBWSIW 0) NP ySU 238l 152U

11|dx2 &9 At 2unsodes ysu 1a%iep shem Jo Aauea Ul 451y 3anJe 0} pasodEa 3g Aew sUopnilsuw BIueuy
‘tended pue sBuiires o1 ss0] B ul Bulnsas saoud Anpoluwad Jo/puE speards ppaus
Y € JO suonisod 133ys aDURIEG-10 PUR UO 1O SN[BA 2Y1 1BYL YSU U3 51 sIY 13lel

Asey ansem { 2)

66566 TE +0°9T 0£°779°01 2LPRLY SEETT SELBL0T = £9°T93°S “[e0L
£574L9 FO'9T £5'09% = - 95’0 - - SIHSSE (BIIURUL 13410
99'T09°6 3 = LE0E5T = 85°8IT'L ol TL TIPSt Susisany)
£F52 * = LI - SE°L T L8'6 sAgeAIaDRY
8¢'056'6 ® 8V'056'6 = . . - - {SU20| 30 JUNOWE |ENIIEJIUOD]SURDT JAWNSUC)
00'TSTTT - ST FT'a52°2 SE'ETT 99'059'¢ ] 07617 {sued| Jo Junowe [EnRIUCIAeIoie -sued] L)
QLT - - = T E = ALPT SuSjeanba YsE3 pUe YSEY UeY) 1310 33UE|Eg JuEy
ST'Sit = = = = = = I TA siuajeainba ysea pue yse
13558 [Eueuly4
Huunpenuey 61T
{elo) sao [telay w8 sonnseg AN aje1sy |eay JUBIBADD SAIAS [R1IURULY

(as1msaygio payes ssapun e3ep aseys Joy 1daoKs ‘SUONIL W) Sy W UROWY el
0Z0Z YHEA TE PAPUS JEaA 243 S0y STUBWIELS [BISUBLIY PIIEPHOSUSS O3 S310N
PaYWr] 31eAly B3UBLL [[AlIg



7edw| aysaddo Inq WaEAINDS UE U PRIINSEI 3ARY DINOM 35E2.23p 1UI|eAInba Uy { SUOHIW T°0TS 5Y BT-B8T0Z Ad) SUONIIW 97" OSET $Y AQ s1y0Id pases sin saey pINOM (707 YaIBly T 18 s211[nba

1dLAd §,9n005 ayy jo anjea 341 ur 3sealdtn 1Ua3 1ad T ¥ “PyLng edw ansoddo jng Juseanba ue uy paynsas BngY pInom 25e8132p JudteAmba uy [ SUo W Q5 FE S EI-STOT Ad) SUSH | §2'89T sY AQ Aunba paseRIv] MY
PINGM Q70T ya1e 1¢ 1e sannb2 [D0A4 5,dN0JD 3173 Jo Snjea 3yl ] 3seloul uaa Jad T ¥ $Y0Is IENPIAIPUL pUE S23MpU| A1ND3 Ja 83| 8y) Ul $38ueyD 10 1|nsal ay) 5B $3EURYD $3IRDS Jo BNteA J1ey B3 JeyT Y51 YD St ysts 3a1d Aunba
A$1y S31g Aunbg (o

05+ (0T°6) {TTST) s3uod S15eq Ul 3503130
05" 151 TSt siucd sIseq Ul 358319
6T0Z 0z0z SARLNIAS 1q2(]
Slujog siseq 11404d 32N uo Py SIEnaed
Oa+ 10T°21T) 55'6T) $3u10d §58q U a5a10]
05- Qr'el <961 SJui0d SISBq Ul 25051730
610z 0Z0Z s3nmoIog
5Jul0d siseq Wpoad 13N U0 Pay)] SIE[NJIHEY

550 pue ae.d 40 Juawistels 5,dnoug 2yl Jo (1UeIsuoD Bulaq S3]geliEA IBU10 ||B) $a3es 352.91u} U sSueys ajqrssod Ajqeuosest e o)

MSUSS 3yl SB1RSUOLIBP 2|qE] Sumo)o) 3YL
Apnnisuas aqey 15a03u)

ASU BN 15AIRU| [BY {n

HS1 JUBLLIS3AUIR) @ 01U Bunepsuen ysu Juadrdaly

Aielon wial poys o
SB1EI 15213101 AY1 BUNIAYE SUOIIPUOD) 13ely Jo AloqemnSay i safuRyy (]

“01 NP sasUE Y5k Jley 159.090] *dN0ILD BY1 JO JUSWIIRIS WAL 3Y) $€ [|3m Se 183YS IauRjeq ay) uo yedun Jolew e SEY ASM SIYL s 318y 152010 J3yYdiy 01 Alelapow 03 pasadia 51 dnaig 3u3 “Buiueuy Jo sinjeu Assa 3y 03 ang

“PRIGIIUOL AjSTONUIUG) 3¢ ||eYS UIBY] 0} UGIIIER 5, ANSNPU| [RIDUBLIY S41 pue 2wn 01 W WOy SusuIedap JuawlzaoS puE 19y Aq 1enJew 243 03 uan s|EUSKS “Sis1 9180 15u3u] Buissasse Iy pRlTaNe
21 saInsodx? 199ys 3IUEEQ-JO PUB SININAR) 'S1955E SYT 40 AN[BA JWOUAE By) 23S Yuom 19y 5,dn0u0 syl uo $1 13edwr wim1 Juo| e 3phse BWodU; 1S8U9Y) 33U 5,dN0JD BYY uo S 39E) 153U3)U) 11 uol1RLEA JO 12RdW| jeIpawWwLl]
BYL Y5H RS 153120U1 0Y 3511 3B SAUADR JUSUASIALL pue Sulpuny Sujpua) s dhouy 2y poliad paipgads B Uiy JssHipe 31211530910 01 1algns ase Yapym ‘suanisod ussmiaq YBWSIL e 51 215y] UL S351IE Y31 DIR. J5aiaqu|

sty a1y 1sasau {1)
{a51/03Y30 pae)s S5ajUN Biep FuEYS J0) 1da0%D ‘SUOHIW Ul Sy W IUNOWY 1Y)

0Z0Z Y34eAl TE PaPUS 1894 3y} 10} SIUIWATRYS [EjaUeUl] PIIEPIOSUOD 0F SAION
patnur) a3eatid soueuly NG




DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{(All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

38 The outbreak of COVID-19 virus continues to spread across the globe inciuding India, resulting into a significant decline and
volatility in financial markets and a significant decrease in global and local India’s economic activities. The Holding Company is mainly
engaged in providing unsecured personal loans to individuals and project finance for real estate development. All of these segments
will be significantly impacted by reduced income and/or job losses of the borrowers, reduced economic activities and defay in
completion and sale of real estate projects due to the disruption caused by the pandemic. All these will lead to major cash flow
constraints and erosion in the asset values.

To deal with this disruption and in accordance with RBI guidelines relating to CoVID-19 Regulatory Package dated 27 March 2026 and
17 April 2020, the Holding Company has granted moratorium of three manths on the payment of all instalments falling due between
1 March 2020 to 31 May 2020 to all eligible borrowers who have requested for the moratorium. The RBI via press release dated May
22, 2020 has permitted lending institutions to extend the maratorium by ancther three months, i.e., from June 1, 2020 to August 31,
2020. The Holding Company will be providing option for extending the moratorium to its eligible borrowers' basis its approved board

policy.

There were fewer loan disbursements during the lockdown period and the timeline for the resumption and normalization of the
Holding Company’s lending activity will be affected by several factors including, but not limited to, including the pace of easing of the
lockdown restrictions,

An inherent part of the Holding Company’s business medel is to raise borrowing for onward lending to its customers. The total
borrowing of the Holding Company as at 31 March 2020 are Rs.25648.45 Millions.

The Holding Company has not sought moratorium in respect of its borrowing in accordance with RBI guidelines relating to COVID-19
Regulatory Package dated March 27, 2020, April 17, 2020 and May 22, 2020. The management has performed a detailed assessment
af its monthly cash Inflows and outflows for next 12 months and concluded that it will be able to meet its obligations even though its
monthly collections remain below normal due to continuation of lockdown.

In addition, the Holding Company has ako considered the following key matters in determining its liquidity position for the next 12
months:

a. Stimulus packages of the Government of India, for small businesses, migrants, small farmers and poor who essentially comprise the
customer base of the Holding Company;

b. Schemes announced by the Government of India, which will directly benefit Non-Banking Financial Companies through guarantees
from the Government of India. The Holding Company has evaluated these schemes and is considering applications to seek fund under
the schemes;

¢. Current status / outcomes of discussions with the Halding Company's lenders, seeking moratorium on the Holding Company's debt
service obligations to such lenders;

d.Status of its requests for additional funding, from existing lenders as well as others

The Holding Company has recorded an expected credit loss provision of Rs,1570.73 Milifons at 31 March 2020 in respect of its loans
and advance. In accordance with the guidance from ICAI, extension of the maratorium to horrowers by the Holding Company pursuant
to the RBI guidelines relating to COVID 19 Regulatory Package dated March 27, 2620 and April 17, 2020 and RBI press conference, by
itself is not considered to result in a SICR for 3 borrower. Given the unique nature and scale of the economic impact of this pandemic,
the credit performance and repayment behaviour of the customers need to be monitored closely. The expected credit loss estimate is
based on various highly uncertain and unobservable factors, In the event the impact of pandemic is more severe or prolonged than
anticipated, this will have a corresponding impact on the carrying value of the financial assets, results of operation and the financial

position of the Holding Company.

As part of risk assessment process, the subsidiaries have considered the possible risk that may result from the pandemic relating to
COVID-19 and its impact on the Carrying amounts of trade receivabies, investments, Financial Instruments and Effectiveness of its
hedges. Based on the Management's Analysis of the current indicator of the future ecanomic conditian on it's Business and the
estimate used in it's financials statements, the subsidiaries do not foresee any impact in the recoverability of the carrying value of the




assets. The risk assessment is a continous process and the subsidiaries will continue to monitor the impact of the Changes in future
economic condition on their business.
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39 Maturity analysis of Assets and Liabilities:

DMI Finance Private Limited
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statemenits for the year ended 31 March 2020
{All Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particulars Within 12 After 12 months Total Within 12 After 12 months Total
months months
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,212.69 1,212.69 475.15 475.15
Bank balance other than Cash and cash
equivalents 15.20 15.20 14.70 14,70
Derivative financial instruments E ] = -
Receivables 3 - -
{1} Trade Recelvables 41,71 41.71 2543 25.43
(1] Other Receivables E - - - - -
Loans 18,347.05 15,006.46 33,353.51 10,724.07 10,477.41 21,201.48
Investments 12,466.78 2,895,458 15,362.24 542794 4,220.42 9,648.36
Other financial assets 219,62 303.55 523,17 666.90 10,67 677.57
Non- financal assets -
Current tax assets [net) 170.07 ] 170.07 118.50 - 118.50
Deferred tax assets [nat) - 378.74 378.74 - 123.37 123.37
Property, plant and equipment 3426 353.38 387.64 70,34 70.34
Intanglble assets - 7.56 7.56 - 5.96 5.96
Other non- financial assets 341,01 - 34101 112,45 - 112.45
Assets held for sale - 189.85 189.85 - 533.68 533.68
32,848.39 19,135.00 51,983.39 17,565.14 15,441.85 33,006.99
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financlal liabilities
Payables
{l) Trade Payables
{i} total outstanding dues of micra
enterprises and small enterprises & = =
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors
ather than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 198.43 - 198.43 97.49 - 97.49
Debt Securities 4,744.57 18,053,00 22,797.57 3,331.23 2,451.05 5,782,28
Borrowings {ather than Debt Securities)
1,473.46 1,617.82 3,091.28 2,006.83 2,464,89 447172
Other financial liabilitles 301.15 33.55 334.70 224,46 34,57 259.03
Non financial liabllities -
Other Non-financial liabitilies 638.09 - 638.09 262.97 - 262.97
|Equity B
Equity share capital 5,592.94 5,592,904 . 5,487.41 5,487.41
Other equity 19,330.33 19,330.38 16,646,09 16,646.09
7,355.70 44,627 .69 51,983.39 5,922.98 27,084.01 33,006.99
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DMI Finance Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(ANl Amount in Rs. In millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

40.7 Impact on fair value of level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value of changes to key P
The table summarises the valuation techniques together with the significant unobservable inputs used to calculate the fair value of the Company's Level 3 assets
and liabilities.

Mar'20 I.F:::;Iv::lsi:tfs Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs
DI Consumer Credit Private Limited 3.16 Net Worth of Investee Company Instrument Price
Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Co.Ltd. 226.20 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount Margin/Spread
Credit Subsitutes 419,58 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount Margin/Spread
DMI Housing Finance Private Limited - Equity Shares - Net Worth of Investee Company Instrument Price
Flash Electronics {Shares Investment) 250,00 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Instrument Price
Compulsory Convertible Debentures 773.17 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount Margin/Spread
NCD Ungquoted 123,76 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount Margin/Spread
Mar't9 Lia\:l‘;a:::s::s Waluation technigque Significant unobservable inputs
DMI Consumer Credit Private Limited 3.00 Net Worth of Investes Company Instrument Price
116.68 Disc‘?unted P'ro[ected Cash Flows/Price- Instrument Price
. Earning Multiple Method
Alchemist Asset Recanstruction Co.Ltd,
Credit Subsitutes £895.85 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount Margin/Spread
DMI Housing Finance Private Limited - Equity Shares 264.87 Net Worth of Investee Company Instrument Price
Flash Electronics {Shares Investment) 25000 Net Worth of Investae Company Instrument Price
Compulsory Convertible Debentures 772,93 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount Margin/Spread
NCD Unguoted 917.41 Discounted Projected Cash Flows Discount Margin/Spread

A40.8 Quantitative analysis of significant unobservable inputs

Instrument Price
Given the nature of this approach, there is no range of prices used as inputs.

Discount margin/spreads
Discount margin/spreads represent the discount rates used when calculating the present value of future cash flows. In discounted cash flow models such spreads

are added to the benchmark rate when discounting the future expected cash flows. Hence, these spreads reduce the net present value of an asset or increase the
value of a liabllity. They generally reflect the premium an fnvestor expects to achieve over the benchmark interest rate to compensate for the higher risk driven by
the uncertainty of the cash flows caused by the credit quality of the asset. They can be implied from market prices and are usually unobservable for illiquid or
complex instruments,




DMI Finance Private Limited
Hoites to Consolldated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(At Amount in Rs. o millions, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

40.9  Semsitivity of falr value measurements to changes In unohservable market data

The table below describes the effect of a 10% movernent In the significant unohservable nput,
All changes, except for financial instruments at FYOCI would be reflected in statements of Profit and Loss,

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable
Partizulars

changes thangas changes changes
INR million INR millian INR million INR million

Instruments measured through FYTOCI
Dl Consumer Credit Private Limited 032 {0.32) 030 10,30}
Alchemist Asset Reconstruction Co Lid, 22 52 [22.62) 31.67 (31.67}
Credit Subsitutes 4196 {41.96) 845,58 89.58)
NCD Unquoted 12,08 {12.08) 3174 19174
DI Housing Finance Private Limited - Equity Shares - - 26.49 {26.49)
Flash Electronlcs (Shares Investment} 25.00 125.00} 25.00 125.00}
Compulsary Convertible Debenturas 77.32 [{77.32) 77.32 [77.32)
Total 179,29 {179.29} 342.1D {242,10}

40,10 Fair value of financial Instruments not measured at fair value

Set out below is a comparlson, by class, of the carrying ameunts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments that are not carried at falr value in the financial statements. This table
does not include the Fair values of non—financial assets and non—financial liabilities

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-19
Financial Assets: Falr ¥alue Carrying Fair Value Carrying
Valie Walue

Loans and advances

Corporate Loans 11,630.70 11,73533 10,595.72 10,325.20
Investrments — at amortised cost

NCD { Quoted) 1,332,192 1,300.09 1,446.78 1,651.05
Financial Liabilities:
Debt securities

Man converttble debentures 21,676,224 21,302.00) 3,570.94 3,300.00

Valuation methadelogies of financial instruments not measured at fair value
Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the ahove financial instruments which are not recorded and meaasured at fair value in the company's flnancial
statements. These fair values were calcutated for disclosure purposes only. The below methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables.

Borrowings - At Amortised cost
These Includes Term Loans. The falr values of such lisbilitles are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash flows using actual or estimated yields and

discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties’ credit risk. These instrument are classified in Level 3

Investrnents - At amortlsed cost
Thesg includes Quoted non converhible debenture & corporate loans. The Fair values of such instruments are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash flows

using actual or estimated vields and discounting by yields Incorporating the counterpartias' credit risk, These Instrument are classified in Level 3.

Assets and Liabilities other than abave
The carrying value of assets and liabilities other than investments and borrowings at amortised cost represents a reasonable approximation of falr value




